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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2019, 8:50 A.M.

2 (Court was called to order)

3           THE COURT:  James Nalder versus Gary Lewis, Case No.

4 A549111.  I guess I should say because it’s the As, 07A549111. 

5 Counsel, please note your appearances for the record.

6           MR. STEPHENS:  David Stephens for plaintiff, Cheyenne

7 Nalder, Your Honor.

8           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Tom Christiansen for third party

9 plaintiff Gary Lewis, Your Honor.

10           THE COURT:  Okay.

11           MR. ARNTZ:  Breen Arntz appearing for defendant Gary

12 Lewis.

13           MR. WAITE:  Dan Wait, Your Honor, for third party

14 defendant attorney Randall Tindall and his law firm, Resnick

15 Louis.

16           MR. WINNER:  Tom Winner for UAIC.

17           MR. DOUGLAS:  And Matthew Douglas for UAIC, Your

18 Honor.

19           THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, we’ve got a bunch of things

20 here.  The thing that caught my eye was Mr. Tindall’s motion to

21 -- to withdraw.

22           MR. WAITE:  Could we hear that first.

23           THE COURT:  Is that where we should be -- huh?

24           MR. WAITE:  Can we hear that one first, Your Honor?

25           THE COURT:  I was going to say, that seems to me maybe

2
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1 something we should deal with initially.  So we’ve got that on

2 order shortening time.  Does anyone have an issue with us going

3 forward and dealing with it today, or does somebody want to file

4 paperwork or something else in regard to this?

5           MR. WAITE:  I've spoken with some of the counsel, Your

6 Honor, and I don’t believe anyone has any objection to it.

7           THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Let’s -- let me hear

8 what you have.  You seem to be moving toward the podium, so let

9 me hear what you have to say.

10           MR. WAITE:  Your Honor, I don’t know that since it’s

11 unopposed, I don’t know that I have anything more to add other

12 than the unique circumstances of this case has created a

13 conflict of interest for Mr. Tindall and his firm to -- to

14 proceed.  And so we filed the motion and, unfortunately, it was

15 on very shortened time.   We appreciate your considering and

16 granting the order shortening time to today.

17           But given the circumstances that present themselves,

18 it just puts Mr. Tindall and his firm in a position where

19 they're damned if they do, damned if they don’t.  They really

20 can't take a position given the relationship they have to both

21 Mr. Lewis, the insured, the client, and then the insurance

22 company, UAIC, that hired them.  He’s just -- he can't -- he

23 can't act, so he needs to get out.

24           THE COURT:  What does that, from your perspective,

25 then, as to the motions Mr. Tindall has filed on behalf of Mr.

3
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1 Lewis?

2           MR. WAITE:  Well, those -- those motions that were

3 filed were filed in good faith.

4           THE COURT:  I'm not suggesting they weren’t.  I'm just

5 asking where does that leave us with those motions?  Are they

6 being withdrawn or --

7           MR. WAITE:  Well, you have the unique situation where

8 you have UAIC who hired Mr. Tindall to represent Mr. Lewis’s

9 interest, and you have Mr. Lewis who hired Mr. Arntz to

10 represent his interest.  And so we have Mr. Tindall who has

11 filed some motions, and then Mr. Arntz filing the withdrawal of

12 those motions.

13           THE COURT:  Right.

14           MR. WAITE:  Which took us by surprise.  We did not --

15 we were not aware of that.  But as we -- as put in the moving

16 papers, we have conflicting instructions from our client Mr.

17 Lewis, who their side had previously indicated withdraw the

18 motions, UAIC saying go forward with the motions.  We don’t --

19 we don’t take a position, if you will, Your Honor, other than

20 motions were filed initially in good faith, and Mr. Lewis has

21 decided, through Mr. Arntz, to withdraw the motions.

22           THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me ask you.  I assume that’s

23 your position, Mr. Arntz?

24           MR. ARNTZ:  Yes, Your Honor.

25           THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Now, let me just ask

4

RespLewis403



1 what’s UAIC’s position.  I mean, it sounds -- we no longer have

2 any other attorney, assuming I grant the motion to withdraw, we

3 no longer have any other attorney than Mr. Arntz representing

4 Mr. Lewis.

5           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  As -- as the plaintiff.

6           THE COURT:  Yeah, and he’s wanting to withdraw this

7 motion.  So what’s your take on that?

8           MR. DOUGLAS:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Matthew Douglas

9 for UAIC.  Your Honor, UAIC, given that this has all come up in

10 the past week and they only learned that Mr. Tindall was going

11 to be withdrawing, I believe, last Thursday the 4th, they would

12 ask this Court to continue the issue as to the motions filed by

13 Mr. Tindall, and the motions to -- whatever their status is, to

14 leave them time to get new counsel to come in.

15           I have an affidavit, actually, from the adjuster

16 explaining they have not been able to get new counsel since

17 learning of Mr. Tindall’s withdrawal.  I can -- I can provide

18 that to the Court if that’s okay.

19           THE COURT:  Sure.  I mean, has -- a copy has been

20 provided to everybody else?

21           MR. DOUGLAS:  I think so.

22           THE COURT:  I mean --

23           MR. DOUGLAS:  I have copies for everyone else.

24           THE COURT:  Well, let me just -- I mean, Mr. Lewis

25 doesn’t want your company to hire anybody to represent him.  I

5
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1 mean, I guess it’s not clear for me as I know you have a

2 contractual obligation to provide a defense to Mr. Lewis, but if

3 he declines that, what in your contract says that he can’t

4 decline that and that he has to -- I mean, is there something in

5 there you want to argue that the -- his contract requires him to

6 have you hire somebody to represent him?

7           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Just --

8           THE COURT:  I’ll let you talk in a second.

9           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I just want to --

10           THE COURT:  Hold on.  I'm asking -- I'm asking him.

11           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

12           THE COURT:  I’ll let you talk.  Don’t worry.

13           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

14           THE COURT:  I'm pretty good with that.

15           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Before you decide.  Okay.

16           THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  What?

17           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Before you decide.

18           THE COURT:  Well, no, don’t -- don’t -- no.  I think

19 I'm sort of going through everyone here and --

20           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

21           THE COURT:  -- trying to get positions.  So, I mean --

22 so what -- I mean, like I said, I've seen the paperwork.

23           MR. DOUGLAS:  Sure.

24           THE COURT:  You talk about how you’ve got an

25 obligation to defend him, that’s why you hired Mr. Tindall.

6
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1           MR. DOUGLAS:  Yeah.

2           THE COURT:  I mean, he’s now saying I don’t want --

3           MR. DOUGLAS:  Yes.

4           THE COURT:  -- you to hire anybody, I like Mr. Arntz. 

5 And, I mean, is there something in your contract you're

6 contending requires him to accept your -- your attorney?

7           MR. DOUGLAS:  Well, you put it that way, Your Honor,

8 this is obviously a very strange situation.  I think we can all

9 agree.  But clearly, yes, in short answer, the contract, as most

10 liability insurance policies, the insurer has the ability to

11 control the defense.  In fact, the leading case in the bad faith

12 arena, the Allstate versus Miller case specifically notes it,

13 and that’s why, in fact, the insurer was held liable in not

14 providing notice of settlement demands.

15           So it’s clear the contract provides the duty, the

16 control of the defense, to the insurer.  If they're going to be

17 liable, unless plaintiff wants to stipulate or Mr. Lewis wants

18 to stipulate that UAIC will have no liability from either of

19 these two actions proceeding, I think they have a right to have

20 somebody control the defense for Mr. Lewis.  Otherwise, it’s a

21 farce.  So that’s why we’ve asked for the continuance.

22           And I think it’s also important to note kind of a

23 hypothetical here, and it’s something I presented in some of the

24 moving papers.  You can have a situation, obviously, under

25 Nevada law, single vehicle accident, let’s say a husband and

7
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1 wife.  Husband is negligent, causes the accident.  Wife, in

2 order to recover, would have to sue her husband tortfeasor dry. 

3 We can all agree on that.

4           Under their position, what would stop the husband from

5 saying, no, I don’t want a defense?  Maybe the wife’s injuries

6 are illegitimate.  Does the insurance company not still have a

7 right to appoint counsel to defend those claims just because the

8 insurance says no, because maybe the insured has a self-interest

9 against the insurer.  That’s a conflict, too.

10           THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Christensen, Mr. Arntz. 

11 One of you want to --

12           MR. ARNTZ:  Two points.

13           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Let me say real quick, and then he

14 can --

15           THE COURT:  I don’t -- I mean, however you want to do

16 it.  I mean, you both have a fish in the fight, so --

17           MR. ARNTZ:  The problem we have here, and with all due

18 respect to Mr. Tindall who I -- I have no problem with and I get

19 along fine with, the issue is that UAIC is creating a farce by

20 hiring a lawyer to come in and represent Mr. Lewis in a way that

21 he doesn’t want to be represented.  Because what they're doing

22 is they're hiring that lawyer to represent UAIC.  They're not

23 hiring that lawyer to represent my client.

24           And so that’s the farce.  That’s the ruse is that

25 they're using this contract, this supposed contract, which they

8
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1 breached a long time ago.  They breached it when they didn’t

2 give him a defense.  So now they want to say, no, we want to

3 accept this contract and hire a lawyer to represent Mr. Lewis,

4 when in reality all they're doing is hiring that lawyer to

5 represent UAIC, and that’s the conflict.

6           THE COURT:  Well, I think that’s exactly what he said. 

7 I don’t think that there is a farce or a misrepresentation.  I

8 think their position is that if they're potentially going to be

9 liable on this, they have a right to come in under their

10 contract and provide -- provide a defense.  So I don’t think

11 anybody is misrepresenting or misleading anybody.  The issue is

12 does the contract require that.

13           MR. ARNTZ:  Well, it -- it --

14           THE COURT:  You know, the contract -- the client has

15 at this stage after, I know you raised the breach and, I mean,

16 there’s arguments once you breach it then, you know, all the

17 little applications of the contract principles potentially come

18 into play as to whether they're still binding.  But, I mean,

19 that’s -- I mean, I think that’s -- no one is -- there’s no

20 misleading here.

21           The issue I see is, you know, that now that we’re

22 stepping down this road is does your client have an obligation

23 under either contract or -- I don’t know the case law to -- to

24 let them hire somebody on his behalf to represent, to

25 effectively represent their interest.  So that’s what I -- 

9
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1           MR. ARNTZ:  Well -- 

2           THE COURT:  I’ll let -- I know you're there.

3           MR. ARNTZ:  -- last -- last -- last comment.  Mr.

4 Lewis is being represented.  That’s the point.  And so any

5 effort by UAIC to come in and impose some other lawyer on Mr.

6 Lewis is not for his benefit.  It’s for UAIC’s benefit.  That’s

7 the ruse I'm talking about.  And I'm not talking about, you

8 know, some dastardly kind of scheme that counsel is creating. 

9 That’s not the issue, obviously.

10           The issue is what is UAIC doing here when hiring

11 another lawyer who is -- who is then doing things that Mr. Lewis

12 doesn’t even want them to do?  And so Mr. Lewis is represented

13 by me.  But any effort by UAIC to impose some other lawyer on

14 him would be for UAIC’s protection only, not for Mr. Lewis.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.  Mr. Christensen.

16           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And the one thing that I wanted to

17 correct earlier is the misapprehension that has been created by

18 UAIC that Mr. Lewis has said we don’t want you to defend us. 

19 That has not ever been said by Mr. Lewis.

20           In fact, what -- what has been said by me representing

21 Mr. Lewis in the claims against UAIC that are on appeal to the

22 Ninth Circuit and tangentially relate to these actions here is

23 that if you hire somebody to represent Mr. Lewis, please have

24 them talk to me, not to Mr. Lewis directly, because Mr. Lewis

25 has a conflict with UAIC, his insurance company.  And that

10
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1 conflict is he has sued his insurance company.

2           His insurance company didn’t defend him back in 2008,

3 2007 when this thing went down, and that’s when they had their

4 duty to defend and they breached it.  And now they can't come in

5 10 years down the road and say we have to get -- fix that

6 judgment, we have to get rid of that judgment for you.  That’s

7 what they're saying they're doing.  They don’t have -- and they

8 don’t have that ability because they breached the duty to defend

9 back in 2007 and 2008 to get into this lawsuit right here.

10           They still had the duty to defend as of 2013 when the

11 Ninth Circuit reversed the trial court and sent back down and

12 the trial court then determined that UAIC had breached their

13 duty to defend, then they had a duty to defend going on from

14 there.  But that duty to defend is that they should be paying

15 this judgment.  Paying this judgment, not messing with this

16 judgment, not filing false pleadings on behalf of Mr. Lewis that

17 he doesn’t want filed on his behalf.

18           So instead of saying -- Mr. Lewis saying, no, I don’t

19 want you to defend me, he has said what is it that you're

20 intending to file?  What is the basis for your motion for relief

21 from the judgment, for example.  And because -- because as I

22 read the -- the Nevada case law, the Mandelbaum case in

23 particular, that judgment is solid gold, you know.  It -- it --

24 in the Mandelbaum case a judgment --

25           THE COURT:  Listen, I don’t -- I don’t read the

11
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1 paperwork as them challenging the 2008 judgment.  I see them as

2 -- I'm essentially reading the paperwork, you're trying to get a

3 renewal of the judgment, and they're essentially saying that

4 judgment has died because it wasn’t properly renewed.

5           And so, you know, I -- you know, no one -- I don’t --

6 and I may be wrong, but I don’t read it saying that the initial

7 -- that they're trying to go back and relitigate the initial

8 judgment in that there was a judgment for the three and a half

9 million dollars.  I see all the paperwork here as saying this

10 judgment expired and --

11           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Right.

12           THE COURT:  -- we’re coming in and defending, you

13 know, his interest and, admittedly, their interest in -- in a

14 claim that they no longer -- that they contend no longer exists. 

15 And so it’s a little bit --

16           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  May I approach the bench --

17           THE COURT:  -- different from --

18           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- Your Honor?

19           THE COURT:  -- the Mandelbaum case, in my opinion.

20           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, may I approach the bench?

21           THE COURT:  Sure.  Well, I mean, if you're going to

22 give me something --

23           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I'm going to give you Mandelbaum.

24           THE COURT:  -- give them --

25           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Do you have Mandelbaum --

12
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1           THE COURT:  -- give them a copy of it.

2           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- or you want another copy?

3           MR. DOUGLAS:  I'm okay.

4           MR. WINNER:  1897 case?  We’ve seen it.

5           THE COURT:  Okay.  Go ahead.  I think I've got this,

6 but I’ll take it --

7           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I have it highlighted --

8           THE COURT:  -- so we have it for the record.

9           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- on the second page there.

10           THE COURT:  And let me just not for the record that

11 you did give a copy of Mandelbaum versus Gregovich, 50 P. 849.

12           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And that counsel for UAIC didn’t

13 want one.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.

15           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  But so the second page, the first

16 highlighted paragraph says the averments of the complaint and

17 the undisputed facts are that at the time of the rendition and

18 entry of the judgment in 1882, the appellant was out of the

19 state and continuously remained absent therefrom until March

20 1897, thereby preserving the judgment and all rights of action

21 of the judgment creditor under the same.  Notwithstanding,

22 nearly 15 years had elapsed since the entry of the judgment, yet

23 for purposes of the action, the judgment was not barred.  For

24 that purpose the judgment was valid.

25           That’s the same judgment that we have in this case

13
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1 that UAIC is trying to say is invalid, and that is clearly

2 against the law in Nevada.  That’s -- that’s -- this has -- this

3 has been the law in Nevada for over 100 years, Your Honor.  And

4 it goes on because it was the law in Nevada, it comes from the

5 common law.  This is a common law cause of action, and it’s

6 discussed in the -- in the Mandelbaum case.

7           So when they come in and say, oh, there’s all these

8 crazy things going on and Mr. Christensen isn't allowing us to

9 represent our insured, they're being disingenuous, Your Honor,

10 because my -- I wrote the letters and they never said that. 

11 What I said is, hey, my reading of the Mandelbaum case tells me

12 you're going to lose your defense of Mr. Lewis, and who is going

13 to pay for that when it’s lost?  So never has Mr. Lewis said

14 don’t defend me.  He’s only said defend me properly.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.

16           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  If there's -- if there’s a real

17 defense, I'm -- I'm more than interested in it, tell me what it

18 is.  And Mr. Rogers couldn’t give me one, Mr. Tindall didn’t

19 give me one, and California counsel said -- couldn’t give me

20 one, and he opposed UAIC’s motion to intervene in California.

21           And the California court denied their motion to

22 intervene appropriately because there are also case law that

23 says when you breach the duty to defend, you no longer have a

24 right to direct the defense.  So that’s one reason.  And we use

25 California law all the time on -- especially on claims handling

14

RespLewis413



1 issues or bad faith cases like we have here.  So that -- that --

2 and that’s cited in my briefs and stuff.

3           But that’s not all in this case.  When Mr. Rogers was

4 first -- we were first having discussions with Mr. Rogers, it

5 became apparent that Mr. Lewis would need independent counsel

6 under the Hansen case, a Nevada case that adopted the Kumis

7 (phonetic) case, a California case, that allows for independent

8 counsel, Breen Arntz, who doesn’t have the tripartite

9 relationship with UAIC where UAIC is kind of directing the

10 defense, but it’s not in Mr. Lewis’s best interest.

11           So that’s why Mr. Breen Arntz is here.  And they owe. 

12 UAIC is supposed to be paying Breen Arntz’s fees, and they have

13 resisted that to this point.  But they certainly don’t need to

14 hire another attorney who can carry their water instead of

15 actually filing things that are in the best interest of Mr.

16 Lewis.  Thank you.

17           THE COURT:  Okay.  I mean -- I mean --

18           MR. DOUGLAS:  Your Honor, can -- can I just briefly?

19           THE COURT:  We have -- we have more time --

20           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.

21           THE COURT:  -- so don’t worry.  All right.  I lost my

22 train of thought that I was going to ask Mr. Christensen.

23           MR. WINNER:  I need to -- I'm sorry to interrupt.  I

24 need to be downstairs at another hearing if the Court wouldn’t

25 mind leaving Mr. Douglas in charge of UAIC’s position in the

15

RespLewis414



1 case.

2           THE COURT:  I'm sorry.  Say that again?  What are you

3 asking?

4           MR. WINNER:  I need to be downstairs for another

5 hearing.

6           THE COURT:  Okay.

7           MR. WINNER:  I’d like to say a couple of things before

8 I go downstairs if the Court would permit me to exempt myself.

9           THE COURT:  All right.  I’ll let you.  Go ahead.

10           THE RECORDER:  Mr. Winner, if you could move closer to

11 the microphone.

12           MR. WINNER:  All due respect to everyone here, the

13 same law firm represents the plaintiff and the defendant in this

14 case.  The same law firm represents the judgment creditor and

15 the judgment debtor.  Nobody has explained to me or explained to

16 the Court how is it in Mr. Lewis’s best interest to have a $5

17 million judgment standing against him when it benefits the

18 lawyer who is representing the plaintiff in the case who is --

19 there is a finding by the federal district judge in this case

20 that there was no bad faith.  There was no bad faith.

21           The issue being decided by the Supreme Court is

22 whether UAIC would have to pay the judgment in the absence of

23 bad faith as a consequence for the breach.  That’s the question. 

24 A motion to dismiss that appeal was filed because the judgment

25 had expired.  It expired.  All UAIC wanted to do was hire a
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1 lawyer to file papers to decide on the merits whether that

2 judgment had, in fact, expired.

3           Mr. Christensen will not allow anybody to speak with

4 his client, Mr. Lewis, or file papers on Mr. Lewis’s behalf.  He

5 is representing both sides of the same lawsuit and accusing

6 everyone else of having a conflict.  That’s why we’re here.

7           THE COURT:  I think everyone has a tremendous conflict

8 in this.  The issue, of course, is clients can waive conflicts

9 if they're properly discussed with the client.  We can --

10           MR. WINNER:  Yeah, some conflicts.

11           THE COURT:  -- get into that but --

12           MR. WINNER:  Yes.

13           THE COURT:  -- but it’s -- it’s a messy scenario at

14 this point in time.

15           MR. WINNER:  That said, with the Court’s permission, I

16 need to absent myself.  Thank you.

17           THE COURT:  Well, you’ve got someone else still here,

18 I mean, who --

19           MR. WINNER:  He’s smarter than I am anyway.

20           THE COURT:  I’ll let you absent yourself.  Thank you

21 for your comments.

22           MR. WINNER:  Thank you.

23           THE COURT:  All right.  Let’s see.  All right.  I

24 understand your position and I understand the issue in terms of

25 conflict.  I can see how you can argue that there is a conflict
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1 in view of the fact that they didn’t represent him back in 2008,

2 and now they're coming back now and so there’s a reason I think

3 you can suggest of mistrust which could exist between Mr. Lewis

4 and UAIC.

5           But let’s look, though, at what I'm hearing from UAIC,

6 though, which is that -- and maybe this is probably more proper

7 to Mr. Arntz rather than to you, but, I mean, you know, UAIC is

8 asserting that under their agreement with Mr. Lewis, they have

9 certain right to protect their -- their interest in the -- in

10 this.

11           And while they're not challenging the 2007 judgment,

12 they're entitled to come in and assert a defense on Mr. Lewis’s

13 behalf to the renewal or the extension of the judgment.  I mean,

14 what’s your -- I'm not talking about whether that’s correct

15 legally at this point, but what’s your thoughts in terms of do

16 they have the ability to do that under their agreement.

17           MR. WAITE:  Breen, can I just ask one thing?

18           MR. ARNTZ:  Sure.

19           MR. WAITE:  Your Honor, I'm not sure if we’re still on

20 Mr. Tindall’s and Resnick and Louis’s motion to withdraw.  If

21 we’re on to other matters, I would ask that the motion be

22 granted so that my silence and sitting here isn't construed as

23 some -- 

24           THE COURT:  All right.  I will.  At this point I think

25 it is appropriate.  I will go ahead and grant Mr. Tindall’s
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1 motion to withdraw.

2           MR. WAITE:  Thank you.

3           THE COURT:  He’s already gone.  That’s good.

4           MR. WAITE:  He had to go to the discovery

5 commissioner, Your Honor.

6           THE COURT:  Okay.  And I’ll -- I’ll no longer hold you

7 here.

8           MR. WAITE:  Well, I still -- I am still here as a

9 third party defendant, but I was representing him on his firm’s

10 motion --

11           THE COURT:  Okay.

12           MR. WAITE:  -- to dismiss.  So I’ll stay here, but 

13 I --

14           THE COURT:  Another representation between parties.

15           MR. WAITE:  Yeah.  I’ll prepare an order on the motion

16 to withdraw --

17           THE COURT:  Okay.

18           MR. WAITE:  -- Your Honor.  Thank you.

19           THE COURT:  That’s fine.  All right.  So I just want

20 -- because I'm dealing here now -- I mean, UAIC is asking for

21 essentially a continuance on the issue of whether -- on the

22 issue of the motions that they filed.  And so, I mean, that’s

23 the way essentially I read it is they're saying give us a chance

24 to hire new counsel to represent whether or not we can continue

25 on with these motions.  So I'm just asking you, I mean, is there
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1 -- you know, what’s your argument that there’s no basis and I

2 should just pop those motions out today?

3           MR. ARNTZ:  Okay.  So I'm a pretty simple-minded

4 person, so my simple way of looking at this is that -- is the

5 following.  First, UAIC breached its contract with my client

6 years ago by -- by failing to provide a defense.  As a result of

7 that breach, a judgment was entered, and that’s the only reason

8 the judgment was entered was because they breached their duty to

9 defend him.  So they breached their contract, a judgment was

10 entered against him.

11           I think it’s -- it’s telling that the person arguing

12 most forcefully for allowing another attorney to come in and

13 represent my client is UAIC.  What that reflects is that UAIC is

14 the person -- is the -- is the party in interest as it relates

15 to this judgment.  It’s not my client.  And in fact, in point of

16 fact, my client was harmed, which is the substance of Mr.

17 Christensen’s presence here.

18           My client was harmed as a result of UAIC’s failure to

19 defend him along the lines of the Campbell case in Utah where a

20 party was exposed and made to consider bankruptcy and they --

21 they incurred their damages as a result of that insurance

22 company’s failure to defend them properly and failure to

23 indemnify them.  So Mr. Lewis is in a similar situation now

24 where he’s been harmed as a result of this judgment being

25 entered.  He has a right to pursue those damages.
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1           The only party that benefits by UAIC’s presence here

2 through the ruse, as I call it, of a separate attorney

3 representing Mr. Lewis is UAIC.  UAIC is the only party that

4 benefits by having that judgment dismissed because Mr. -- Mr.

5 Lewis was harmed by that judgment and he has a cause of action,

6 he has a right to pursue for damages resulting from that

7 judgment.  So that’s all UAIC wants to do here is represent its

8 interest, not Mr. Lewis’s interest.

9           THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me just ask UAIC, I mean, Mr.

10 Lewis doesn’t want to be represented.  To the degree you have a

11 contractual or case law basis to come in at this point and

12 assert anything, can't you do that, you know, by yourself rather

13 than through Mr. Lewis?

14           MR. DOUGLAS:  Well, it’s funny you mention that, Your

15 Honor, because I think also up this morning is a motion to void

16 our intervention.  So Mr. Christensen would like no one to

17 oppose this -- this attempt to fix the expired judgment that

18 they're trying to perpetrate.  And that’s really the key issue. 

19 I mean, I think Mr. Arntz kind of admitted that.

20           I mean, yeah, UAIC is protesting what every other

21 attorney here -- I mean, sorry, I'm excluding counsel for the

22 other third party defendants.  But essentially all the other

23 counsel here are aligned in plaintiffs’ interest, you know.  And

24 this is no -- this is no -- not trying to blame Mr. Arntz for

25 his position, but the fact of the matter is, he’s aligned with
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1 plaintiff.  He tried to enter a stipulated judgment which gives

2 plaintiff everything they want.

3           And -- and so is there -- is there -- is no party

4 allowed to contest what Mr. Christensen is doing?  That’s what

5 they would have you think.  So I understand Your Honor’s

6 question, but when you're moving to strike our intervention, we

7 have no choice.  The only way we --

8           THE COURT:  Well, if I -- if I don’t strike the

9 intervention, if don’t grant that motion, is there anything that

10 precludes you from continuing on as to this issue and me

11 essentially saying Mr. Arntz is Mr. Lewis’s attorney in this

12 matter?

13           MR. DOUGLAS:  Your Honor, all I would say to that is

14 this.  Even if you were to not strike our interventions in both

15 actions, Mr. Christensen has made clear he will be appealing. 

16 And --

17           THE COURT:  Well, I mean, that’s -- that’s what --

18           MR. DOUGLAS:  Which is -- which is -- which is his --

19 that’s not -- but the fact is, then, if you go ahead, then, and

20 dismiss or, you know, extinguish the motions filed by Mr.

21 Tindall, they may be forever lost to UAIC.  The fact is, it’s

22 not just our contractual right.  I've cited case law.  I mean,

23 Nevada law is clear.  There's a tripartite relationship for

24 counsel.  There’s nothing scandalous about UAIC wanting to argue

25 their interest also on behalf of their insured through counsel
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1 for the insured.  This is not any kind of sinister plot.  I 

2 mean --

3           THE COURT:  And I'm not suggesting it.

4           MR. DOUGLAS:  Yeah.  But what I mean is --

5           THE COURT:  Let -- let me just -- I'm not -- I'm not

6 going to get into the allegations of sinisterness among all the

7 parties here.  I know each side is alleging sinister -- I'm only

8 interested in the legal, you know, if your -- your motive -- I

9 mean, I don’t think anybody has particularly got super clean

10 hands in -- 

11           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.

12           THE COURT:  -- in this whole mess.  Everyone has

13 probably got a little issue here or a little issue there.  I

14 don’t want to get in -- the issue is, you know, legally where we

15 -- where we’re here.  And so, I mean, Mr. Christensen, if I

16 don’t grant the motion to intervene, I mean, he has appeal

17 issue.  If I say that Mr. Arntz is the sole representative for

18 Mr. Lewis, I assume you got -- and I'm wrong on that, you’ve got

19 -- you’ve got an appeal issue.

20           So, I mean, you know, I'm here to make a decision and

21 I get appealed all the time.  It’s one of the perks of the job. 

22 And so I under -- you know, we’ve got to make some decisions and

23 move forward as best we can.

24           MR. DOUGLAS:  Your Honor, I’ll keep it -- I’ll keep it

25 short.  What I meant, and pointing out that potentiality, the
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1 only thing I wanted to bring the Court’s attention is if Mr.

2 Tindall’s motions are extinguished, looking down the road, and

3 our intervention is appealed and perhaps Mr. Christensen is

4 successful in overturning it, Rule 60 has a six-month window to

5 contest that amended -- potentially to contest that amended

6 judgment.  Mr. Tindall’s motions are vacated.

7           That may be lost forever to my client, that route of

8 contesting what has gone on here.  And so for that reason I

9 think that -- that situation should live on.  Because I think

10 UAIC has a right to at least argue that issue on behalf -- with

11 counsel appointed for Mr. Lewis.  So that’s -- that’s my only

12 drawback.

13           THE COURT:  All right.  All right.  Let me ponder this

14 for a second.  Let’s move to what probably is the next optimal

15 issue, which is your motion to strike the intervention.  So, I

16 mean, I’ll let you give me your thoughts on that if you want to

17 add anything to your briefing.

18           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, and -- and it actually is a

19 good segue into that, this discussion of the tripartite

20 relationship.  Because they don’t have the right to direct the

21 defense if there’s a conflict between their interest and the

22 insured’s interest, and that’s already been established.

23           And the way Nevada deals with that, it’s case law,

24 Hansen case, which is cited in the briefs, that adopts Cumis

25 counsel, and that’s what Breen Arntz is.  That’s how Nevada law
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1 handles that conflict between the insurance carrier and the

2 insured is they appoint Cumis counsel.

3           And, again, I go back to -- because -- because you,

4 again, have said in the arguments back and forth and the

5 discussions, you again said, well, what’s to prevent counsel --

6 I mean, Lewis from just telling you I don’t want you to defend

7 me.  And, again, that is not the situation.  That’s what UAIC

8 tries to say.  That’s not what has occurred here.

9           We have welcomed the defense, but we want an ethical

10 defense and a proper defense that actually takes his interest

11 into account.  Okay.  So -- and that’s why we get to the

12 Mandelbaum case because this all started because of an affidavit

13 that said this -- this judgment has expired.  That affidavit

14 isn't the law.  It’s not true.  That -- that hasn’t happened,

15 even under the renewal statutes because they reflect back to the

16 statute of limitations statutes.  So I just want to make that

17 clear.

18           And one other thing to be clear about is, yes, my

19 office represented James Nalder in the original 2007/2008 action

20 against Gary Lewis.  My office.  It was Dave Sampson, actually,

21 in my office, who was the attorney, you know, in contact with

22 the client at that time.

23           THE COURT:  Right.

24           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Judgment was entered.  Then Dave

25 Sampson in my office represented the Nalders, James Nalder, and
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1 Gary Lewis against UAIC --

2           THE COURT:  Right.  In the federal case.

3           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- in the action filed in state

4 court, removed to federal court.  It decided wrong once,

5 appealed, decided wrongly a second time, appealed, and it’s up

6 on appeal right now.  And that is the bad faith issue is on

7 appeal right now.  Yes, the trial court said you breached the

8 duty to defend, but I don’t think it was bad faith.  But that’s

9 still on appeal.  That’s still a valid, ongoing issue that may

10 be decided against UAIC yet, right, on that -- in that case.

11           THE COURT:  Well, I mean, that’s -- and that’s

12 something that’s of interest to the Court because I looked and

13 apparently, you know, there's a certified question to the Nevada

14 Supreme Court, which is essentially on point with a lot of what

15 UAIC is raising in terms of its support for the expiration of

16 the -- of the judgment as far as this litigation.

17           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Right.  But it’s not the same thing. 

18 Well, and let’s -- let’s talk about that for a second.

19           THE COURT:  They look pretty close.

20           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, not really because -- now, let

21 me just explain how that works.  Even if it was exactly the same

22 issue, I had another case here in -- and I think I talked about

23 it in one of the briefs, but here in Las Vegas where we filed

24 because of strategic reasons or whatever on behalf of the

25 injured party.  His name was Louis Vinola (phonetic) against the
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1 defendant Gillman (phonetic) in state court.

2           We already had one case against the insurance carriers

3 and Ann Gillman that had been removed to federal court, and then

4 we filed an additional case in state court.  And Judge Bare

5 dismissed that at the behest of Gillman, dismissed that case,

6 and we had to appeal it.  And, finally, the Supreme Court

7 reversed it saying you can have concurrent things, litigations

8 going along in different courts.  There is nothing wrong with

9 that.  That’s improper to stay one action to let this other

10 action go along.  That’s not -- there is no case law for that.

11           And so to argue that, oh, we have to have some way to

12 come in here and -- and mess with this judgment by UAIC is -- is

13 not true.  They had their opportunity to defend Mr. Lewis.  It

14 was in 2007/2008.  Now they don’t get to come in, and that gets

15 us to the motion to intervene because that’s what all the case

16 law says.  And let me get to that.

17           But so there’s no equity reason that they should be

18 able to come in here and -- and do this.  They had that

19 opportunity in 2007/2008.  That’s why they're responsible for

20 the judgment.  And this is just a minor demonstration that the

21 judgment is still valid.  That’s all it is.  It’s just to

22 demonstrate that fact.

23           THE COURT:  You mean this litigation is for that

24 purpose?

25           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Correct.
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1           THE COURT:  Okay.  Now I'm -- but, I mean, that’s --

2 that’s obviously -- I mean, you refer to it as a minor

3 demonstration that the judgment is still valid, but if the

4 judgment isn't still valid in view of the underlying three and a

5 half million dollars, I mean, that UAIC may be liable for, it

6 obviously is -- I don’t -- you know, whether or not that

7 judgment is still valid is not what I would consider a minor --

8 minor question.

9           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, it actually -- and I apologize

10 for calling it a minor question.  It’s -- with regard to the one

11 aspect, that’s not even the question in the first case.  In the

12 -- in the amendment of the judgment to Cheyenne Nalder, that is

13 just an amendment of the judgment.  That does nothing.

14           THE COURT:  Well, I mean, if it’s -- I would agree.  I

15 mean, if it had expired, I mean, it doesn’t --

16           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  It’s an amendment of the expired

17 judgment.

18           THE COURT:  -- it doesn’t --

19           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  If it's --

20           THE COURT:  It’s an amendment of an expired judgment.

21           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  If it’s still valid, it’s an

22 amendment of a valid judgment.

23           THE COURT:  Okay.  Yeah.

24           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And we, of course, say it’s an

25 amendment of a valid judgment.  But so to set aside that order

28

RespLewis427



1 is -- is meaningless.  It shouldn’t even be -- that’s -- that’s

2 the minor part.

3           THE COURT:  Okay.

4           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Then the other case, the subsequent

5 case, is just to demonstrate that, yes, that judgment is still

6 valid because I can sue on that judgment and that judgment does

7 have to have that -- that Mandelbaum analysis.  You're going to

8 have to make that Mandelbaum analysis and say, yeah, the

9 judgment is ten years old, but it’s been stayed for eight of

10 those ten years, and so it still has another four years provided

11 he returns to the state, right.

12           So but -- but on this intervention question, the plain

13 language of NRS 12.130 does not permit intervention subsequent

14 to the entry of the final judgment.  And -- and this is from the

15 Dangberg Holdings versus Douglas County case.

16           THE COURT:  And I know what you're -- you're going

17 down.  I guess -- and that concerns me in terms of the Court’s

18 ruling on the intervention.  But I guess what -- I mean, what

19 none of those cases really seem to deal with is what we sort of

20 have here which is, you know, I mean, if this was 2013, I would

21 completely agree with you that an insurance company can't come

22 in and intervene.  I mean, we’ve got a judgment, the statute

23 certainly hasn’t run on it, it’s a final judgment, it’s done.

24           But, you know, now essentially you’ve initiated

25 additional litigation to declare that judgment a valid or
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1 continuing, renewed or whatever, judgment.  And the insurance

2 company, obviously, has an interest in that if you're going to

3 be alleging that, you know, their bad faith makes them liable

4 for the whole three and a half million or whatever with interest

5 and everything it’s worth -- it’s worth now.  And that seems to

6 change to some degree the -- at least the facts in terms of the

7 application of the prior decisions.

8           So, I mean, that’s -- I'm -- I'm going to agree with

9 you completely, if we were looking at this in 2013, the case law

10 says we’ve got a final judgment, you can't come in, but we

11 obviously have a little bit of a different scenario here where

12 now it’s we want to, you know, revalidate or continue to

13 validate this judgment.  And there is an argument that it’s no

14 longer valid, and it seems to me the insurance company has an

15 interest at that point in time that justifies them jumping into

16 the -- into the litigation.  That’s -- if you -- you know, so

17 I'm on board with you in terms of the general -- what I need you

18 to do is focus on that issue that I'm looking at.

19           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, first of all, and just to --

20 just to keep us clean here because I -- it’s very important,

21 Dave Stephens represents Cheyenne Nalder.

22           THE COURT:  Right.

23           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  He is the one that brought both, did

24 the amendment and also brought the subsequent action.  So let’s

25 not confuse that.  I didn’t bring those.
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1           THE COURT:  But, I mean --

2           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Dave Stephens --

3           THE COURT:  -- I'm not suggesting --

4           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- brought those --

5           THE COURT:  -- saying who brought them.

6           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- on behalf of Cheyenne.

7           THE COURT:  I'm saying we now have it, so --

8           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Right.  And this is -- so -- so the

9 fact is that your statement that it would have been good if it

10 was 2013 actually argues against the process in my view, right. 

11 The -- the fact that more time has gone by makes it more

12 improper for them to be coming in here.  This isn't something

13 that just came out of the clear blue sky, but -- but they are

14 kind of the interrelated things.

15           I agree with you that -- that there’s this

16 interrelated thing.  But assume for a second that the law is

17 crystal clear, black letter law says that that judgment is still

18 valid.  Then does the insurance company have a right to come in? 

19 Well, of course not.  Well, I submit that is what the black

20 letter law is.  But so let’s -- let’s talk a little bit more

21 about how shortly that fuse is and why it’s improper.

22           So it’s the -- it’s the fact that the plain language

23 of NRS 12.130 does not permit intervention after final judgment. 

24 What it says is you can intervene before trial.  That’s what the

25 statutory authorization is.  And there’s numerous cases from
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1 Nevada.  I only cited two, but there’s numerous cases from

2 Nevada that say that’s what it means.

3           So if there’s a judgment in the case, you can't

4 intervene period.  I don’t care what defense you want to put in

5 there.  You can't intervene.  There’s a judgment.  It’s

6 improper.  And the Dangberg versus Douglas Holdings case goes on

7 to say a voluntary agreement of the parties stands in the place

8 of the verdict.  And as between the parties to the record as

9 fully and finally determines the controversy as a verdict could

10 do, and intervention is denied if there’s an agreement settling

11 the thing.

12           So that -- that has to do with the second case that

13 was filed because an agreement had been entered into between the

14 parties that -- that resolved the case.  And so the intervention

15 at that point in time was improper as the case had been

16 resolved.  In the -- well, so that’s enough on that issue.

17           The one other thing I wanted to talk about here is

18 this analogy that Matt Douglas has brought up because that’s --

19 because I’d like to extend it to how this case really is.  So if

20 in our hypothetical situation the husband sued the wife and got

21 a judgment, and then the wife and husband sued the insurance

22 company because they didn’t intervene, they didn’t defend the

23 wife in the case, and then the insurance company -- so they sued

24 the insurance company.  Then the insurance company came and

25 tried to intervene in the case to present some defense.
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1           Let’s say that they were going to present the defense

2 that the wife had a preexisting condition, and the wife and the

3 husband both know there was no preexisting condition but the

4 insurance company wants to present that defense.  Number one,

5 they wouldn’t be able to intervene anyway because it’s against

6 the law.  Oh, that’s the other case I wanted to -- I'm sorry,

7 Your Honor.

8           THE COURT:  That’s all right.

9           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Because this one is an important one

10 and I forgot that that’s the reason I wanted to talk about it. 

11 And that’s Gralnick, Gralnick, G-R-A-L-N-I-C-K, versus Eighth

12 Judicial District Court.  That’s a writ petition that was

13 granted because the District Court allowed intervention, and

14 then granted setting aside of the judgment and the Supreme Court

15 directed it back down and said NRS 12.130 does not permit

16 intervention subsequent to the entry of a final judgment and

17 directed the District Court to send them out and -- and

18 reinstate the judgment.

19           And that’s exactly where we are right now.  And so

20 there is no right to intervene.  There's no interest to protect

21 other than preserving the false affidavit that said this

22 judgment has been expired.  Maybe I should deal with that just a

23 little bit because you -- you did talk about that.

24           In the Ninth Circuit, that issue was brought to the

25 fore, what, two years ago, by a motion to dismiss the appeal for
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1 lack of standing.  This is after two appeals, two decisions by

2 the trial court, now there is suddenly a lack of standing.  I

3 can't tell you how the Ninth Circuit makes their decisions, but

4 that -- that seems a lot to me.

5           THE COURT:  When I was on the criminal side, I

6 couldn’t figure that out, either.

7           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, there you go.  And so -- but

8 -- but when we got that motion, we had, I don’t know, what, 10,

9 20 days, whatever the time frame is for responding to those

10 motions.  It was supported by an affidavit of counsel that just

11 said I've checked the registry and I don’t see any renewals, and

12 so this judgment is expired because it’s got a six-year statute

13 of limitations on it, right.

14           But he didn’t talk about tolling.  There’s no mention

15 of tolling things.  But so that’s how that issue came about. 

16 And we, of course, opposed the motion, but our main opposition,

17 Your Honor, is the fact that after the judgment was entered, the

18 defendant and the plaintiff, in order to bring the action

19 against UAIC, entered into an assignment agreement.

20           It was a partial assignment agreement where the

21 judgment amounts that might be recovered from UAIC on behalf of

22 the insured, Gary Lewis, the judgment amounts would go to the

23 Nalders, and anything above that would go to Gary Lewis.  So

24 that was the assignment agreement.  And it didn’t have anything

25 in there about we won’t continue to chase after you or execute

34

RespLewis433



1 on you, but that was kind of the understanding, you know, that

2 we’re going to cooperate together and obtain this compensation

3 from UAIC.

4           And so -- so in the briefing with the Ninth Circuit,

5 it wasn’t said because we were mainly just saying it doesn’t

6 matter.  The judgment could be expired, it could be valid, it

7 doesn’t matter.  When we assign these rights and the fact that

8 he’s been living with the judgment for x number of years and the

9 fact that the decision disregarding the judgment was made in

10 2013.

11           I mean, it would be the same thing as the federal

12 district court making a decision on a -- on a plaintiff’s

13 personal injury case where -- and awarded or didn’t award

14 $400,000 of medical bills and then it was up on appeal for three

15 years, and then the -- the insurance carrier files a motion to

16 dismiss the appeal because now they don’t have standing because

17 the $400,000 of medical bills, the hospital never sued on them,

18 and the time for them to sue on them has passed.  It would be

19 the same thing.  And that’s -- it doesn’t make sense to me,

20 anyway.

21           Anyway, so the motion to intervene -- oh, let’s talk

22 about that, too, with regard to the motion to intervene because

23 that’s part of the motion is that it was improperly granted

24 under the law, but it was also procedurally totally and

25 completely improper.  And that’s not a minor thing because the
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1 -- it -- one of them wasn’t -- the affidavit of service didn’t

2 have anybody checked.  Nobody.  So it was an affidavit of

3 nonservice.

4           The other affidavit of service checked served by the

5 automatic filing system, the -- I mean, the, you know,

6 electronic serving system on Dave Stephens, but at that time,

7 and we’ve printed those out and they're attached to our motion,

8 at that time Dave Stephens wasn’t even on the service list.  So

9 that’s a false affidavit on its face, right, because they --

10 they checked that he was served that way, but they knew that he

11 wasn’t.

12           Because when you go in and do that filing, which I

13 have never done myself, but I'm told that when you go in and do

14 that filing, you have to check.  And if they're not on the

15 service list, you can't check them.  And so you -- it could not

16 have been a mistake that -- that they didn’t know, they thought

17 they did serve it, right.

18           But then when Dave Stephens finds out about it just

19 because he’s checking the -- the court records and stuff like

20 that and he calls up defense counsel and says, hey, you know,

21 you didn’t serve this on me, could you give me more time, they

22 wouldn’t give him more time.  So then he quickly filed an

23 opposition, you know, not with -- not all that time, and got it

24 to the court, and then the court disregarded it.

25           And the minute order was no opposition having been
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1 filed, and it was an in-chambers hearing.  It wasn’t even a

2 hearing, you know, where people got to be heard.  And -- and so

3 then when the order came out, again, that order the judge

4 crossed out the no opposition having been filed in the order,

5 but they -- he didn’t deal with any of the issues.  And all of

6 this information was put forward in that opposition.  So --

7           THE COURT:  All right.

8           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  So the only thing to do now is to

9 void those orders and -- and then that resolves all the other

10 issues in this case.

11           THE COURT:  All right.

12           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And that’s the way it should be. 

13 UAIC can still claim that, oh, this was a big fraud and there --

14 there were this thing and that thing and that shouldn’t have

15 been done, but they would be doing it in the proper place, not

16 -- not by intervening in this action where they don’t have any

17 business being.

18           THE COURT:  All right.  I have another proceeding

19 starting around 10:00, so I’ll give you -- Mr. Christensen had a

20 wide swap.  I’ll give you something close to that, but --

21           MR. DOUGLAS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22           THE COURT:  -- don’t feel you need to --

23           MR. DOUGLAS:  I’ll try to keep it --

24           THE COURT:  -- need to --

25           MR. DOUGLAS:  -- as straightforward as I can and try
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1 to stick to the issues.  I think just because he ended with it,

2 let’s talk about the notice issue very quickly.  Your Honor,

3 we’ve, in the opposition, we’ve supplied the affidavit of my

4 paralegal.  There was an inadvertence, apparently, in the

5 certificates of service.  That said, she attested she mailed

6 both motions to Mr. Stephens, the interventions in both cases. 

7 So I think that this notice issue is moot for that reason.

8           Any suggestion that I didn’t grant Mr. Stephens an

9 extension or I was somehow violating rules of professional

10 conduct, that is absurd.  I checked with my office after Mr.

11 Stephens raised the issue.  They said they were properly served. 

12 I mean, my understanding, my paralegal talked to the clerk of

13 the court, everyone is required to sign up for e-service.  Mr.

14 Stephens filed this case.  I don’t know why he wouldn’t be on

15 the service list.

16           Mr. Christensen is wrong.  I don’t think you check the

17 boxes anymore.  You just file it and everyone that’s on -- has

18 assigned themselves to e-service gets a copy.  So there’s no way

19 to notice whether or not until -- until after it’s already in

20 that there’s no one that has signed up.  So either way, they

21 were mailed.

22           And I think when you get down to it, it’s moot, the

23 notice issue, for two reasons.  One, these -- both motions were

24 opposed.  In fact, Mr. Arntz even opposed them.  So they were

25 fully briefed.  And here’s the main issue.  All these issues are
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1 before us now.  So even if there was an issue as to notice

2 initially, they're getting a full and fair hearing as to all

3 their problems and objections to this -- to these interventions

4 now, so I think the notice issue is really moot.

5           And -- and because we’re -- we can just have them as

6 -- as argued today.  Clearly, everyone got a full chance to

7 respond.  I had to do it under fairly quick circumstances. 

8 These were filed on OST right before the holidays, but we still

9 responded.  So and you’ll see my email trail, I have my

10 affidavit there, my email trail with Mr. Stephens.  We were in

11 contact.  And I asked Mr. Stephens if you -- you know, we were

12 dealing with an issue where timing was -- was, we believe, of

13 the essence because of the Rule 60 timelines.

14           And so we felt this was a stalling tactic.  We

15 couldn’t tell.  UAIC, understandably, was suspicious of perhaps

16 some of the motives given the interference that had gone on by

17 Mr. Christensen and the retained defense counsel, which, of

18 course, necessitated our whole reason to intervene.  And so I

19 was emailing with Mr. Stephens and I was asking him explain to

20 me your objections to these motions so that I can see, you know,

21 are you just stalling or do you have a real legal objection, and

22 Mr. Stephens never responded.

23           The first response I got was his filed opposition.  So

24 I assume the issue of his request for extension was moot by

25 then.  So that being said, if the Judge wants any other
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1 questions on the notice issue, I'm happy to talk about it, but I

2 really think that issue is moot.

3           So now we can talk about the motion to void the 2018

4 intervention.  I think this can be dispensed with fairly simply,

5 as well.  Clearly, there’s no judgment been entered in this

6 case, so plaintiffs’ arguments concerning the statute 12.130

7 really had absolutely no bearing here.  The only argument I

8 heard counsel make was in relation to the Dangberg decision

9 which where there's a settlement that should count the same as a

10 trial judgment.

11           And I'm not disputing the Dangberg holding, but what I

12 would point out is that it is distinguishable here if you note

13 the timing of this alleged settlement, which has never been

14 consummated by the Court, this alleged settlement was filed in

15 the form of a stipulation entered judgment signed between Mr.

16 Arntz and Mr. Stephens.  It was filed after our motion to

17 intervene.

18           So if anything, it was a clear attempt to try and

19 create an issue.  Oh, they're trying to intervene, let’s --

20 let’s enter this, what we think is a sham, Judge.  I don’t know

21 any other way to put it.  Certainly, there's nothing Mr. Lewis

22 seems to gain from it.  I've still yet to hear what he gains

23 from it.  So that’s a red herring.

24           The fact is we filed our intervention, it was pending,

25 and they rush to court and try to -- without notice, by the way. 
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1 My office didn’t receive notice of that filed stipulation, Your

2 Honor, and we were on the e-service list once we filed our

3 appearance with our motion.  I’d point that out.  So -- so

4 basically, in terms of the 2018 case, I don’t really think there

5 is anything that they can do to stop our intervention.

6           And, in fact, after the order was entered, Mr.

7 Stephens, in response to my sending him a copy of the proposed

8 order, admitted he didn’t think there was anything they could do

9 to stop my client’s intervention in that case.  And, obviously,

10 we met all the qualifications for NRCP 24.  We clearly have an

11 interest that’s not being protected here given -- especially

12 given our previous argument where our counsel, appointed

13 retained defense counsel for Mr. Lewis, has been forced to

14 withdraw and those issues are up in the air.

15           So, you know, it kind of dovetails with their

16 argument.  So -- so unless, again, in terms of the 2018 case

17 intervention, unless the Judge has specific questions, I'm happy

18 to -- to respond to them.  The other -- the only other point I'd

19 make is that their argument that we breached the duty to defend

20 in ’07, obviously, again, kind of a different distinguishing

21 factual scenario here because we didn’t get a duty to defend

22 until the District Court implied the contract of law because of

23 a renewal --

24           THE COURT:  Well, you still had a duty to defend.  I

25 mean, the fact that the District Court found and implied, that
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1 means that you still had -- you had a duty.

2           MR. DOUGLAS:  No, no, I agree.  I agree.  What I meant

3 to say by that is it wasn’t found until 2013.  And so these --

4 this new filing, the 2018 filing triggered that duty to defend

5 that was found in 2013.  There was no new action filed since

6 2013.

7           So my point is, in terms of the 2018 intervention, I

8 think we’ve met all the factors.  I think the notice issue are

9 moot.  I think we have a right to intervene.  There's been no

10 judgment.  There’s been no settlement before our intervention. 

11 And so I think -- I think that that’s what I would have to say

12 on that.

13           I would also just point out, too, in response to this

14 motion to strike our interventions, we also filed a

15 countermotion to stay pending the appellate ruling.  I think

16 those issues, as the Court pointed out, I think they're more

17 than tangentially related.  I think they are very much related.

18           Specifically, the Court -- the question the Nevada

19 Supreme Court rephrased on a certification, specifically it

20 deals with whether or not that judgment is expired.  I mean,

21 their ruling could be the judgment is not expired.  Their ruling

22 could be that the judgment is expired.  But so that is directly

23 on point to many of the substantive issues that are being raised

24 here.

25           And so I would point out that there is precedent. 
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1 It’s an appellate procedure 8(a)(1)(A) which does ask that you

2 move a district court for a stay prior to moving the appellate

3 court.  So there is a -- there is a rule of civil procedure that

4 would give Your Honor -- and it’s within Your Honor’s discretion

5 to -- to stay.  So I’d note that we filed it as a countermotion.

6           Now, in regard to the old motions to void our

7 intervention, but also switching to the ’07 case with the,

8 quote, unquote, amended judgment, I would first point out to the

9 Court that I don’t even think these motions have met the

10 standard for NRCP 60(b) which is the rule that they have moved

11 to void these interventions under.  It’s a pretty simple

12 four-prong standard.

13           It should be -- these motions should be prompt, there

14 should be an absence of intent to delay, you can also consider

15 lack of knowledge of a party procedurally if they're

16 unrepresented and so on, and there must be a showing of good

17 faith.  Your Honor, I propose they can't meet any of these

18 factors, and for this reason alone you can deny these motions.

19           These were not prompt, all right.  The minute orders

20 were entered in late September.  The orders were entered with

21 notice of entry in, I think, around October 19th or so.  Our

22 motions after the intervention to vacate and -- and to dismiss

23 have been pending for some time, and they file this motion on

24 December 10th or 12th, all right.  So I don’t -- I don’t think

25 this was prompt.  They don’t even address the absence of any
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1 intent to delay any of their motions.

2           And I think that as this Court can see, at least from

3 UAIC’s perspective, we see plenty of intent to delay because we

4 have wanted hearings on whether or not that amendment of the

5 judgment was valid, hearings on whether or not this new action

6 is valid.  For some time these motions have been filed and it’s

7 been obfuscation and delay, so I don’t think they meet that

8 factor.

9           They admit -- Mr. Stephens admits in his brief there’s

10 not a lack of knowledge issue.  They're all represented.  And

11 then good faith?  Where do I begin?  There’s no good faith here. 

12 This has been an orchestrated attempt from the very beginning by

13 plaintiff and counsel that plaintiffs’ counsel got for Mr.

14 Lewis, Mr. Arntz, to avoid these issues getting any kind of

15 hearing.  They wanted to run into court between themselves,

16 enter a judgment to try and fix their problem on appeal with

17 their expired judgment.  I think that’s clear.

18           I've gone through the factors exhaustively in many of

19 our briefs, Your Honor.  It’s why we’ve asked for a

20 countermotion for an evidentiary hearing.  I think there was an

21 attempt to perpetrate a fraud on the Court.  I've never made

22 that allegation in my career in 20 years.  This is the first

23 time I think there are facts that show that that may have

24 occurred here.  So I don’t think there’s any good faith.

25           THE COURT:  All right.
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1           MR. DOUGLAS:  And then just real simply, Your Honor,

2 Your Honor touched on it, the owing judgment, we’re not looking

3 to attack it.  That’s why our intervention in the ’07 case is

4 distinguishable from the statute and case law cited.  We’re not

5 looking to attack the underlying judgment.  We’re not looking to

6 relitigate.  We’re not looking to argue there’s a preexisting

7 condition.  We’re arguing the amendment was void.  It's pretty

8 clear from our motion, our Rule 60 motion, that’s exactly what

9 we’re arguing.

10           THE COURT:  Well, what about the amendment -- I mean,

11 this is how -- Mr. Christensen, I mean, I don’t know if he --

12 the way I understood what he said, and this is sort of how I see

13 it, the amendment just moved it into the plaintiffs’, the now

14 majority, major majority plaintiffs’ name.

15           If it was a judgment -- I mean, not amendment.  The

16 judgment was expired, then we now have an expired judgment in

17 the amended -- in the now adult plaintiff’s name.  If the

18 amendment -- if the judgment hasn’t expired, now we have a

19 non-expired judgment in the now adult plaintiff’s name.  That’s

20 how I see it.

21           And if I was to deny your motion on that, that would

22 be my order, which is I'm not making any ruling by -- by

23 amending the judgment into the name of the now adult plaintiff

24 as to whether or not it’s expired or not.  I don’t see it -- I

25 don’t see what was done as being a decision on the merits
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1 whether or not the judgment continued.  I definitely would agree

2 you would have had to -- you know, that there had to be more

3 done in that regard.  So if I -- if that’s the way I look at it,

4 I mean, how is that handicapping you in some way?

5           MR. DOUGLAS:  Well, Your Honor, I understand your

6 point and clearly, you know, something to consider.  The problem

7 is, you know, I don’t know eventually what an appellate court

8 might say, and to us this looked like an attempt to an end

9 around the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court and -- and somehow

10 sanctify what was an expired judgment without going through the

11 renewal process that [indiscernible] requires --

12           THE COURT:  Let me -- let me tell you how I'm leaning

13 on terms of your -- well, let me deal with -- with the issue

14 relating to intervention.  I don’t see any issue with the

15 intervention in the 2018 case.  I have serious concerns in

16 reference to the 2007 case, but I do think that there are

17 distinctions factually between those cases that say once you’ve

18 got a final judgment you can't come hopping into it.

19           And what's happening here, which is, you know, does

20 that judgment continue to exist.  And, essentially, we have new

21 litigation on that, which I think -- so I am going to be denying

22 the motion to strike the intervention.  I'm leaning -- I mean,

23 my inclination at this point is to deny your motion to -- for

24 relief from judgment pursuant to NRCP 60.  But I want to make it

25 clear in any -- in my order that, you know, I just see that as
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1 moving the case from the name of the father to the name of the

2 now adult plaintiff.

3           And, you know, I would ask, you know, whoever ends up

4 drafting the -- the order in that regard to -- to make that

5 point clear.  I don’t see -- you know, I see that as just being

6 a ministerial thing that was requested by plaintiffs’ counsel to

7 -- to get it into her name at this point since dad really

8 doesn’t have any authority over her anymore.

9           At this point I am going to grant and withdraw, you

10 know, Defendant Lewis’s motion for relief from judgment pursuant

11 to NRCP 60, defendant’s motion to dismiss, and Defendant Lewis’s

12 motion to strike defendant’s motion for relief from judgment --

13 well, no, not that one.  I mean, that’s the one, essentially,

14 I'm granting.  I'm going to -- the ones that Mr. Tindall filed,

15 I'm going to pull those.  I'm going to grant Mr. Arntz, whoever

16 filed it, I can't -- everybody is representing everybody here,

17 the motion to -- to pull those.

18           I don’t see -- you know, the issue here is whether

19 you’ve got anything under the contract or under case law that

20 gives you a right to -- to assert anything.  And so if Mr. Lewis

21 wants to use Mr. Arntz as his attorney in this one, and Mr.

22 Christensen on the other one, I mean, that, I think, is his

23 choice.  And to the degree that there’s any legal implications

24 from that, that’s the case.

25           As far as your motion for an evidentiary hearing for a
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1 fraud upon the Court, I'm going to deny that at this point in

2 time.  I'm not balled up in whether there is a sinister plan

3 here.  I will say that this is unusual.  I've -- this has caught

4 my eye as something, you know, not logical in every sense, but I

5 can't say I've seen anything here which, you know, and, I mean,

6 making some -- I'm making the assumption that counsel in terms

7 of Mr. Lewis, to the degree that there is potential conflicts

8 here, and there obviously are some potential conflicts, have

9 explained those to Mr. Lewis, and that he has made appropriate

10 waiver of those conflicts.

11           So I assume, you know, you’ve discussed this issue

12 with Mr. Arntz?

13           MR. ARNTZ:  That’s right, Your Honor.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.  And you're now independent, but for

15 Mr. Christensen, who obviously does have some arguable conflicts

16 in view of the case, I assume you’ve -- you’ve discussed that

17 with Mr. Christensen?

18           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes, and there are appropriate

19 conflict waivers.

20           THE COURT:  Okay.  That’s --

21           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And there’s also an appropriate

22 conflict non-waiver that’s -- that was filed with Mr. Tindall’s

23 things.

24           THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

25           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  So the conflicts that he has with
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1 UAIC are clearly there and he does not waive them.

2           THE COURT:  That’s fine.  I mean, and I'm not -- I'm

3 talking in terms of his counsel now, so I just want to make --

4 you know, I may -- absent me seeing something of more than I see

5 now, I'm not going to make an assumption that there’s been an

6 ethical violation.  So I am going to deny the motion for an

7 evidentiary hearing on the fraud.

8           I've granted Mr. Tindall’s motion to withdraw as

9 counsel, and -- and now the UAIC’s motion to dismiss plaintiffs’

10 complaint and motion for Court to deny stipulation to enter

11 judgment.  At this point in time, and I’ll let everybody have

12 two minutes to give me any final thought on this one, but at

13 this point my general inclination is to dismiss Claim No. 1

14 because I don’t see that as being a cause of action here under

15 Nevada looking at the Mendina case.

16           I'm leaning toward dismissing Claim No. 3 based on

17 claim preclusion, but I am looking at staying the ruling on

18 Claim No. 2 pending a decision from the Nevada Supreme Court as

19 to whether the judgment has expired because I looked at the

20 filings in, I think, September and November, and the issues

21 relating to Claim No. 2 appear dead on point with what the

22 Supreme Court is being asked.  And it seems to me in terms of

23 judicial economy, it makes sense for me to stay a ruling as to

24 that.

25           So that’s where I'm leaning as to all of these
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1 motions.  So I’ll give everybody, if you want to add anything,

2 Mr. Christensen, Mr. Arntz, Mr. Stephens, counsel, I’ll give you

3 no more than two minutes to give me any final thoughts, but

4 that’s where I'm leaning on everything at this point in time. 

5 So --

6           MR. STEPHENS:  Let me start, Your Honor.

7           THE COURT:  Okay.

8           MR. STEPHENS:  One housekeeping matter.  My motion to

9 strike Mr. -- or UAIC’s intervene -- motion to intervene is set

10 for January 23rd.  In view of your ruling today, I don’t think

11 it would change your mind on January 23rd.  It may be easier to

12 just simply deny that today and take it off your calendar.

13           THE COURT:  That’s fine.  You're probably right on

14 that.

15           MR. STEPHENS:  Right.  So, yeah, okay, so as to this

16 motion.  I have no problem as to Claim 3 because I think it is

17 claim preclusion.  I think I can see that in my points and

18 authorities.  Claim is my claim to enforce the judgment and I

19 was -- I filed a suit to enforce the judgment.  If you dismiss

20 that, I no longer have the ability to enforce my judgment

21 against Mr. Lewis.  And so I don’t think you can dismiss Claim

22 1.  You can stay it pending the appeal.  I prefer you don’t,

23 obviously, but that’s your call, not mine.

24           But if you dismiss my complaint and enforce judgment,

25 which is my Mandelbaum claim, saying I have this judgment, I'm
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1 now suing to enforce it, then I lose my ability to enforce the

2 judgment which Mandelbaum specifically allows.  And as to

3 declaratory relief, if you think the issues are the same as the

4 Supreme Court, then it ought to be stayed pending the decision

5 of the Supreme Court.

6           THE COURT:  Okay.

7           MR. STEPHENS:  I think they're distinct, but you’ve

8 had that argument from counsel.  I'm not going to reargue that

9 with my two minutes.

10           THE COURT:  Okay.

11           MR. STEPHENS:  Thank you, Judge.

12           THE COURT:  Thanks.

13           Do you want to add anything, Mr. Christensen?

14           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Just a few --

15           THE COURT:  I know it’s going to be hard in two

16 minutes, but --

17           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Actually, impossible.  But I just

18 want to correct a couple things.

19           THE COURT:  Sure.

20           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Mr. Tindall was not forced to

21 withdraw.  He withdrew because there is a conflict between UAIC

22 and -- and Mr. Lewis, and that’s why he withdrew.  He wasn’t

23 forced to withdraw.  And that’s what counsel for UAIC said, that

24 he was forced to withdraw.  That’s not true.  And -- and as to

25 the prompt issue, this case, the judge granted it on a non -- on
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1 a non-hearing, granted the intervention without a hearing.

2           And then the first hearing that we had, which wasn’t

3 even a hearing on a motion, shortly after that granting of the

4 motion but before an order had been issued, he recused himself. 

5 Oh, no, no.  But after the order had been issued, then he

6 recused himself, but didn’t void the order.  Then the case was

7 in limbo land getting reassigned.  It got reassigned, and then

8 the UAIC did a peremptory challenge of one of the judges.

9           And that, of course, then put it into limbo land

10 again, and so we couldn’t file any motions during that period of

11 time.  Who would we file them with?  And then it got reassigned,

12 and then UAIC filed a motion to consolidate.  And in our

13 opposition to the motion to consolidate was our countermotion to

14 strike the intervention.  So it was definitely timely.

15           And the only other thing I’d like to know is since you

16 are denying our motions to strike the intervention, I would like

17 to know the reasons for that because I think it’s clearly not

18 the law that you can do that.

19           THE COURT:  All right.  Well, I think, you know, the

20 2018 litigation is -- there’s been no judgment entered in terms

21 of the complaint filed in the 2018 litigation and I think that

22 they meet the requirements for intervention, at least as it

23 relates to that complaint that’s filed.

24           As far as the 2007, I understand your point with that,

25 and, I mean, there’s case law that talks in terms of once that
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1 final judgment has been entered, you know, you can't be hopping

2 into -- into the case.  But I do see, you know, a distinction

3 between that case, those cases, and what we have here, which is

4 you now have essentially the prospect of new litigation, which

5 is that 2018 case, on -- to enforce that 2007 judgment.

6           And that new litigation creates new issues, which is

7 whether that judgment has expired or was -- or has been renewed. 

8 And I think definitely UAIC has -- has an interest in that and

9 meets the elements necessary to intervene.

10           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  So how are you dealing with the

11 voluntary agreement between the parties that was entered into

12 prior to any intervention?  And I'm not talking about an

13 improperly noticed motion to intervene, because that’s not

14 intervention, okay.  You're not in the case until you actually

15 get to intervene.  So how do you deal with that agreement that

16 was entered into?

17           THE COURT:  Well, I mean, that agreement was never

18 signed off on by the Court.  And so, you know, I don’t think we

19 have a judgment that has been entered into that are approved by

20 the Court in reference to that stipulation.

21           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  So you don’t think that the

22 settlement agreement entered into between the two parties to the

23 litigation is effective in preventing intervention by some third

24 party?

25           THE COURT:  At this point in time, since it was never
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1 signed off on by the Court, I mean, that agreement has been

2 sitting out there for quite some time prior with the prior

3 court, if I remember correctly.

4           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Correct.

5           THE COURT:  But it was never signed off on, and I

6 think that you don’t have that -- I mean, technically, again,

7 looking at things from a legal perspective, I don’t think we

8 have -- you have a judgment, that final judgment at that point

9 until the Court has signed off on it.

10           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.  The Dangberg case says just

11 the opposite, Your Honor.

12           THE COURT:  Okay.

13           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  It says that if there is an

14 agreement entered into, that is the same as a judgment.  It

15 doesn’t have to be signed off on by the Court.  It’s just the

16 agreement.  If the case is settled by agreement, it's done, over

17 with, there can be no intervention.  So that would not be a

18 proper reason to allow intervention int his situation.

19           THE COURT:  All right.  Well, I’ll take one more look

20 at it, but that’s where I'm going to -- I am going to be ending

21 up at this point in time.  But I will take one more look at that

22 case that you're -- you're giving me, and take -- do you have a

23 final thought?

24           MR. DOUGLAS:  Just in brief response to that, Your

25 Honor.  Again, as I pointed out when I was up there, we have the
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1 only proof of the settlement was the filing of that proposed

2 stipulation which was done after we intervened.  And so --

3           THE COURT:  Now, you said it was filed before they

4 intervened.

5           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yeah, before they intervened, after

6 -- after they filed their improperly noticed motion to

7 intervene.

8           THE COURT:  Okay.

9           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  But before their order allowing them

10 to intervene, yes.

11           THE COURT:  Okay.

12           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Before the decision on their motion

13 to intervene, it was filed before that.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.  I’ll -- I’ll look at the timeline.

15           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And I would ask one other question,

16 too, then.  And that is why -- so right now my understanding is,

17 right, that you have the stipulation, the filed stipulation, and

18 the judgment with a request to execute it; right?  And so I

19 would also ask why -- what are the reasons in law or factually

20 or whatever that you are not signing that particular order, that

21 particular judgment that’s been stipulated to by the parties. 

22 What is the reason?

23           THE COURT:  I think at this point, I mean, you’ve got

24 UAIC coming in.  They filed a motion to dismiss the complaint. 

25 And, you know, there are a lot of -- I’ll be frank, there are
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1 questionable parts to this.  And so at this point in time I'm

2 not going to be signing off on it.

3           We’re going to see what happens with the Supreme

4 Court.  If it says that the judgment continues, I think that

5 resolves a lot of things here in this case and we’ll move

6 forward on that basis.  If they say it doesn’t, I think that

7 there are a lot of open issues here.  The fact that it’s up

8 there in the Supreme Court and been certified, I think judicial

9 economy it makes sense for us to take -- let them say what it

10 is.

11           I have no issue -- I mean, I have no issue if they say

12 there’s an extended judgment.  I think the plaintiff is entitled

13 to everything that she’s entitled.  If they say there is an

14 extended judgment, I think that their -- UAIC has got a valid

15 concern, so that’s how I'm going to proceed.

16           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.  And then I have one other

17 question.

18           THE COURT:  Okay.

19           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  And I apologize, Your Honor, but

20 this is an extremely important situation.

21           THE COURT:  No, that’s why I let it go for another --

22 for a little bit longer.

23           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I apologize.  But -- and I can't

24 remember, maybe you can help me out, but if this was on appeal

25 to the Nevada Supreme Court, this case, and -- and you were not
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1 wanting to rule because it’s on appeal, there is that case --

2 anybody know what I'm talking about?  Where you say to the

3 Supreme Court I would rule this way but for it being on appeal. 

4 So if you want to send it back so I can change my rulings to

5 correct some --

6           Do you know what --

7           MR. WAITE:  Honeycutt.

8           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Honeycutt.  Yeah.  A Honeycutt

9 order.  Sorry.  Thank you.

10           We would request that a Honeycutt order, that where

11 you resolve these issues based on what you think and say to the

12 Supreme Court I didn’t -- I didn’t want to mess with you, but if

13 you were done with this thing and -- and it was down here with

14 me, I would rule this way on these issues.  That’s -- that’s

15 what I would propose doing.  And it’s kind of a weird situation

16 because it’s not really a Honeycutt situation because, like I

17 said, this is not on appeal.

18           THE COURT:  It’s not on appeal.

19           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  It’s not on appeal.

20           THE COURT:  I mean, no, it’s not on appeal.  I think

21 -- I do have the -- I would have the ability to make a ruling. 

22 I don’t have any issue on that.  I'm making -- using my

23 discretion and saying, at least my reading, the exact issues as

24 to the question of extension renewal are -- have now special

25 questions on the Ninth Circuit appeal before the Nevada Supreme
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1 Court, and so I'm using my discretion to let -- you know, for

2 judicial economy, it’s what they say.  Because I can -- what

3 they do there, I think, will quickly resolve the issues that we

4 have here.

5           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Well, just to -- so one -- one fact

6 on that, and that is the issue on appeal is not Mr. Lewis’s --

7 the judgment against Mr. Lewis being valid or not.  That’s not

8 the issue on appeal.  The issue on appeal is whether Mr. Lewis

9 and Nalder can maintain an action against UAIC.  That’s the

10 issue that’s on appeal.  And --

11           THE COURT:  But -- but the question --

12           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- and it’s assumed --

13           THE COURT:  -- that has been certified to the Nevada

14 Supreme Court encompasses --

15           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yeah.

16           THE COURT:  -- the issue that --

17           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  But not to -- not to decide is the

18 -- is the judgment valid.  It’s like assumed that the judgment

19 is not valid, then do you still -- are you still able to bring

20 the action against UAIC.  That’s the issue on appeal.  They're

21 not -- the Supreme Court isn't going, well, is it this or is it

22 that, or, you know, is the judgment still valid against Mr.

23 Lewis?  That’s not -- it’s assuming the judgment isn't valid

24 against Mr. Lewis, can he still bring the claim against UAIC. 

25 And I think that answer is, yes, he can --

58

RespLewis457



1           THE COURT:  Okay.

2           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- for the other reasons that I

3 talked about.  But those are the issues on appeal.  This down

4 here is -- this is the proper court to decide is this judgment

5 valid.  And by not doing that, you are not doing your

6 responsibility --

7           THE COURT:  Okay.

8           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- to these parties, to these two

9 parties, and it’s going to affect -- could affect their appeal

10 with the Ninth Circuit.  But we’ll -- we’ll take --

11           THE COURT:  Well, we’ll see what --

12           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  -- whatever action we have to take.

13           THE COURT:  -- how long -- hopefully, the Supreme --

14 of course, we’re talking the Nevada Supreme Court, but hopefully

15 the Supreme Court will take some action.  I don’t have a

16 problem, you know, if they don’t take action, file a motion

17 asking for the Court to reconsider its stay on that issue, and

18 we’ll -- we’ll take a look at it at that point.

19           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay.

20           THE COURT:  All right.

21           MR. DOUGLAS:  Your Honor, I just -- a couple

22 housekeeping because I know you want to get done.  I just,

23 because I know you granted the withdrawals of Mr. Tindall’s

24 motions, we did make an oral motion to continue to get new

25 counsel.  I'm assuming we’ll deny -- you're going to deny that
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1 for --

2           THE COURT:  I mean, I'm not -- you can get new counsel

3 and see.

4           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.

5           THE COURT:  I mean, I'm not telling you what you can't

6 and can do.

7           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.

8           THE COURT:  If you think you’ve got a basis to get new

9 counsel, get new counsel.  I'm not making any ruling on that.

10           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.

11           THE COURT:  I'm just saying at this point in time, Mr.

12 Lewis has -- Mr. Tindall has withdrawn, Mr. Lewis’s current

13 attorneys say we want those withdrawn, I'm granting the motion

14 to essentially withdraw those motions filed by Mr. Tindall.  If

15 you think you’ve got a basis to force Mr. Lewis to take -- take

16 counsel you hire, you know, go for it.  We’ll deal with it at

17 that point.

18           MR. DOUGLAS:  Two other quick things, Your Honor.  I

19 understand just in regard to what was said about the Dangberg

20 case.  Again, there was some back and forth, but I think at

21 least as far as the court docket is concerned, we filed our

22 motion to intervene prior to that stipulation alleging the

23 settlement having been filed.  And I think that’s why it's

24 distinguishable from Dangberg.

25           Once they -- if they had looked at the court docket,
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1 which as good counsel I'm sure they did, they knew we were

2 trying to come in.  That’s why -- that’s why that settlement can

3 be stated.  I would also ask, the one thing we didn’t deal with

4 in my motion to dismiss the 2018 case, we talked about the three

5 causes of action, dismissal of one, stay of the other.  We also

6 had a countermotion to stay that affidavit.  I don’t know what

7 Your Honor wants to do with that motion.

8           THE COURT:  Stay.

9           MR. DOUGLAS:  Stay -- stay -- to do anything with the

10 affidavit, that was filed.  Because that affidavit, as you

11 mentioned, which kind of goes to this Dangberg issue was just

12 float -- it’s floating out there.  It was filed.  It’s never

13 been signed.  I don’t know if Your Honor feels the need to do

14 anything with that.  We did file our countermotion to stay. 

15 Stay -- stay -- again, we could stay that or grant that.

16           THE COURT:  It’s on calendar for next week.

17           MR. DOUGLAS:  Oh, it’s on calendar next week.  Okay. 

18 Is that the 23rd?

19           THE CLERK:  Yes.

20           MR. DOUGLAS:  Okay.  Sorry.  We’ll deal with it them.

21           THE COURT:  Well, I’ll look at it and --

22           MR. DOUGLAS:  We’ll deal with it then.

23           THE COURT:  But all right.

24           MR. DOUGLAS:  I'm not going to take up any more of

25 your time, Your Honor.
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1           THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Arntz, do you have

2 anything?

3           MR. ARNTZ:  No, Your Honor.

4           THE COURT:  Okay.  Thanks a lot, everybody.

5           MR. DOUGLAS:  Thank you.

6           MR. STEPHENS:  I wasn’t clear if you were still going

7 to dismiss my first claim for relief.

8           THE COURT:  You know --

9           MR. STEPHENS:  That’s the only thing for purposes of

10 the order.

11           THE COURT:  -- I’ll take -- I think since I'm going to

12 stay on No. 2, I’ll go ahead and acquiesce to your point 

13 there --

14           MR. STEPHENS:  Thank you.

15           THE COURT:  -- and I will stay on No. 1.

16           MR. STEPHENS:  I just wanted to make sure it’s clear

17 for the order.  Thank you.

18           THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

19           MR. DOUGLAS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

20           THE COURT:  Thank you all.

21           MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22 (Proceedings concluded at 10:22 a.m.)

23 * * * * *

24

25
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-ENTITLED
MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

Julie Potter
Kingman, AZ 86402
(702) 635-0301
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lhe llorwr<lble Edc Johnson, on (1) Third Patty PJnintiff Lewis' Motion for Rei lef 11'0111 Orders 

2 and Joinder in Motions fat Relief from Orders on Order Shortening Time, (2) Intervenor Uniled 

3 Automobile Insurance Company's ("UATC") Counter~Motion to ~jt.ay PemlingAppeal, (3) 

4 
Intervenor HATe's Motion to Di~miss Plaintiffs Complaint (Case Nv. A~18ri772220-C), (4) 

5 

(; 
Defendant Lewis' (through Breen Amtz, Esq.) withdrawals of Defendant Lewis MoHons to 

7 
Dismiss flleciin case No. A-IR-772220-C and case no. 07A5491lJ and Defendanfs Lewis' 

8 Motimrs for Relkffrom Judgment purSt!ant to N.R.C.P. 60 i~l case No. A-18-772220-C and case 

9 .. 110. 07A549 1 11; (5) Defendant Lewis Motions to Dismiss (through Randall Tindall, Esq.) filed in 
" .. 
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0 case No. A-18-772220-Calld casei1O. 07A549111 and Dcfctidai1tsLcwis'Motiot~ f(1f Relief 
P::; 

11 ttl 
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til 
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fro111 Judglnentpursuantto N,R.C.P, 60 in case No. ;\-18~772220-Calld case 110. 07A549111; 

(6) VAlC's OrallVlotion to Continue Defendant Lewis Motions to DisilllSS (through Randall 
~ 13 
...: 

0:: 
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14 
p:.l ...: 

Tindall, Esq.) filed in case No. A-J8-772220-C and case no. 07A549111 <lnd Defendants Lewis' 

Z p 

Z ..: i5 

~ 
i> 
~ 

z 16 

Motions for Rellcf from Judgrnent pUl'suanl10 N.R.C.P. 60 in case No. A-18-772220-Cand case 

no. .. 07A5491 t I pending new COlU1Sd; (7) UAIC's Motion for an Evidentiary hearing fot a tl'aud 

Z 
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18 < 

upon the court; Plain1iffappearingthroughher counsel ofrccol'd Davjd Stephens; Esq, of 

Stephens & Bywatet, and Defendant Lewis appeadng through his cmmsd Qfrecol'd, Breen 

19 
A111tZ, Esq" IntetveliOr/Tlritd Palty DefendantUAIC appcadng thtQl.lghits counsel oftecord, . -. . 

20 
Thomas E. Winner, Esq. & Matthew J. Donglas, Esq, of the T,u"v Finn of Atkin Wumet mid 

21 

22 
Shenod,Third Party Plaintiff Lewis appearing through his counsel of record Thomas 

23 Chtistensen, Esq. of TIle Clu'istcl1sc.n I,(lwOffiecs, and Third Party Defend,u1ts Rundall Tindall 

24 and Resiiick & LouisP.C. appearing through their Counsel ofrecord Dan R. W~itc, Esq. of 

25 Lewis Roca Rothgerbel' Christie, U ,P, the COUlt having reviewed the pleadings and. documents 

26 on filchcfcin, and consideration given lo heal'ing at oralal'gument,fiuds as follows: 

27 
ill 

28 
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1 

') 
"- I, That the issues of law on second cCl'tit1cd qucstion before the Nevada Supreme Comt 

3 in James Nalder, G1UJ1y/hm Ad Litem on beha(l(){ Cheyanne Naldet; and Gary Lewis, 

4 
individually v, United Automobile insurance COll/pany, case nO, 70504,aro 

5 

6 
substantially similar and/or related to issues oflawin these consoiidaled cases; 

'7 2, That the first and second claims for relief ofPlaintiffNaldcl' in her Complaint incase 
r 

8 no, A-lS-772220-C,herein, seeking a new judgment on her original judgment; 

" 
9 cntcredin case no, 07 A5491 U alld seeking Declatatoryre11et: respectively, contain 

1> 
(:I 1() 
0 issues onaw which substantially Slniilar andlor reIated to issues ofJaw OTlasecond 
~ 

11 tti 
l;Q :;! 
!I: 1\1 12 
(/) ... 

J« 

ccrtified question heforc the Nevada Supreme Courtin.1ames Nalder, GuardianAd 

Liteni on belm(f of Cheyanne Nalder; and Gmy LerFis, individually v. United 
% 13 
< 

~ 
~ 

14 
fl.l ..: 

Au/omoiJile Insu},([l1ce Company, case no, 70504; 

Z A 

~ 
,,:: 15 
I> 

:), That the ihird clahu for relief of PlElintiffNalder in her Complrunt in ease no. A·] 8~ 

~ 
14 
z 16 772220"(:, herein, seeking general and specialdoma.ges related to u J:uly 2007 

Z .0: 

I...t 17 
~ 

automobile accident have been previously litigated or, conld have been litigated .• 1n 

f-1 18 < her ol'iginal actioll~ Case no, 07 A549111,hcrein; 

19 
4. This case is uliusual hut the Cotlrl does not find any unethical behavior by eilhetMr. 

20 
Christensen or Mr. Arntz, 

21. 

22 
CONCLlJSJONS OF LAW 

23 1. Pursmmtto N,R,C,P, 24 and N.R,S. 12,130UAIC has a shown right and interest to 

24 intervene in these matters; 

25 2. That the third claim [or relief {)[ Plaintiff Nalder in her Complaint incase no, A-18-

26 n222D-C, herein, seeldhg ge:D.el'lll m1.d special damages l'elrl.tedto the July 2007 

27 
autOl1wbile accident are J)l'cc\uded £\s same have been previously litigated or, could 

28 

Page 3 of6 

RespLewis465



Jan. 24. 2019 3:00PM Atkin Winner & Sherrod No. 1944 P. 6/8 

2 

') . 
. 1 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

'" 
9 

" " Q to 
0 
~ n ~ 
~ )1 
~ 11\ 12 

CfJ 
... 

.J>; 

:z 13 
.-; 

.Cl:i ;.;I 
(4 

~ ..; 
Z ~ 

1" Z ..: 
. "", ... 

... ~ I'll 
16 .. Ii!: 

~ 
-< 

17 

~ 18 -< 
19 

2D 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2(i 

27 

28 

have bccnprcviously litigated in Case No. 07 A549111, hCl'cln, pursuant to the factor 

as set f01th Five Star Capital Corp. )I, Ruby, 124 Nev, 1048,1054-55, 194 PJd 

3. That the fJrst claim f()f relief of Plaintiff Naldcr in her ComplainL in case no. A~ 18-

772220~C, herein, seeking a new judgment on her original 2007 judgment from case 

no. 07A549 1 1 1 is not a valid Gause of adion and the Courtwollid dismiss same under 

the Medina decision, but based upon the request of Counsel for Plaintiff David 

Stephens, Plaintiff's first clairn for relief will be stayed pending decision in James 

N([[de,~ Gual'dial1 Ad Litem 011 behalf' of Cheyul1l1eNalder.,' and Gm), Lewis, 

individuolZv v. United A utmnobile Ins uranee Company, case no. 70504; 

ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREE)) that Third Party Plaintiff 

Lewis· Motion f6r Relieffi'om Orders ilnd Joinder iuall other Motini1s for Relieftl'om Orders on 

Order Shorteuhi.gTime, asweH as PlaintiffNalder's Motion for Relieffroll1 Orders~ arc 

DENIED, fur the rea~()ns stated in the record; and, 

IT IS Illi'REBYFURTHER ORDERED, ADJU])GED AND DECREED Intervenor's 

U.AJC's CountCl'·Ivkition to Stay Pending AP1Jcal is GRANTED, t'orthet reasons Rtated in the 

record, and PlaintiffNalder's first und second claimST(lr relief in her Complaintin case no. A-

18-772220-C netch), (claim 1) seeking a 11ew judgment on her original jUdgment enter-cd in case 

nO. 07/\549111 <md,(dllinl 2) seeking Declaratory relief, respectively, are STAYED pending 

further' 1'uling hy the Nevada Supreme Court in James Ncrider. Guardian Ad Litem on behalfqf 

Cheyanne Na/der; and ({my Lewis, individually v. United Automobile insurance Compm1Y, case 

110,.70504; 8.11d 
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1 IT IS HEREBY liURTHER OlWERED, ADJUDCIW AND DECREED lntcrvenor 

2 UAIC's Molion to Dismiss Plaintiffs Complaint (Case No, A-18-772220-C) is GRANTED IN 

3 PARTand DEFERRED IN PART, such that PlaintiffNaldcr'f1 third claim for rellefin her 

4 
Complaint ill case hO. A-18~772220"C, herein, (claim 3) seeking general and special dmil~)ges 

5 

() 
l'o1ated to and arising from the July 2007 automoblle accident, is DISMISSED, but ruling on the 

7 
Motionto Dismiss PlaintiffNaldet's first und second claims for relief in her Complaint in case 

8 no, A-1 R~7n220-C: 11erein, {)eeklng a new judgment on her original judgment, entered in case 

9 
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11(), 07 A549111 and seeking Declaratory relief, respectively, are DEFERRED pending further 
~ 
~ 

~. 10 
0 :ruling by theNevudnSupl'eme Court in .lames Halder} Gliardicm Ad Litem 011 behalf of 
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Cheyal11wNi;tldel'; and Gar')' Lewis, individually v; United Automobile Insurance Company, case 

no. 70S04; 
~ 13 
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IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, AD.lUDG-Im AND DECREED that 
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Z ..: 15 
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Defendant Lcwis(throughBrccn A1'I1tz, Esq.) WITHDRAWALS of Defendant Lewis'Motions 

$ 
f'l 

16 :;:: to Dlsmiss fIled in case No. A-J 8-772220~C as well as case no, 07 A549111 and Defendants 

Z ... 
.... 17 
~ 

Lewis' Motions fOl'Relieffrot1) .Tudgmentpursuant to N,R,C,P. 60 in case No. A-18~772220~C 

~ 

-< 18 a~ svell as case no, 07A549111 (filed by Randall Tindall, Esq,) axe hereby WITHDRAWN; 

19 
rr IS HEREBYJ?UltnillR ORDElffiD, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that 

20 
Defetldant: Lev..'is Motions (0 Disl11iss filed incase No, A-18-772220-C as well as case no, 

21 

22 
07A549111 and Defendants Lewis' 1\1.ot10n3 for ReJ ief ii'om Judgment pursuant to N.RC.P. 60 

23 in case No, A~ 18-772220-C as well as case no, 07 A549] 11 (through Randall Tindall, Esq.) ate 

24 all hereby STRlCKEN per WITHDRAWAL by Counsel for Le'wis, Breen Arntz, £<;q.; 

25 IT IS HEHJl:BY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that DAIe's 

26 OmI Motion to Continue Defendant Lewis' Motions to Di:;;miss filed incase Nu, A-lS-772220-C 

27 
as won as case no, 07A549111 and Defendants Lewis' lvIo1icll1s for Relieffrom Judgment 

28 
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Q 10 
0 
~ n P4 
\'.l.l ;lI 
~ I>l 12 

CfJ 
... 
IX< 

~ . 13 
..: 

~ 
H 

14 
\'.l.l ..: 
Z p 

Z ..: 15 
~ :> 

~ '" l<: 1:6 

~ 
11{ 

17 
~ 
~ 18 -< 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

pursuant to N,KC,P.60in case No. A-18-772220-C a~ well as case no. 07A549111 (thrnugh 

Randall Tindall, Esq.) pending new cOlll1selto be retained by UAle, is hereby DENIED 

WITHOUT PREJUDICE for the l'ea80118 stated in the tecol'ci; 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED DAle's 

Motion for an Evidentiary hearing for a fraud upon the COUlt is hereby DENIED \VITHOUR 

PREJ(JD1CE for the rcasonsstatcdin the rccot'd. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

DATED this 11 day of !f(3!ltlfJI2Jt 

Submitted by: 

DISTRICT, 

~--.;.,.,,' 
,.,..-.r---C:;-""-.-

ERIC JOHNSON ~ 
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Case Number: 07A549111

Electronically Filed
7/26/2019 1:01 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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NOAS 
MATTHEW J. DOUGLAS (SBN 11,371) 
ATKIN WINNER & SHERROD 
1117 South Rancho Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
(702) 243-7000 
MDouglas@AWSLawyers.com  
 
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376) 
JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492) 
ABRAHAM G. SMITH (SBN 13,250) 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169-5996 
(702) 949-8200 
DPolsenberg@LRRC.com 
JHenriod@LRRC.com  
ASmith@LRRC.com  
 
Attorneys for Intervenor  
United Automobile Insurance Company 
 

DISTRICT COURT  
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
CHEYENNE NALDER, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
GARY LEWIS; DOES I through V, inclu-
sive, 
 

Defendants. 

Case No. 07A549111  
 
Dept. No. XX 
 
Consolidated with A-18-772220-C 
 

NOTICE OF APPEAL 
 

 
  

UNITED AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE 
COMPANY, 
 

Intervenor. 
 

 
 
  

GARY LEWIS, 
 

Third Party Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
UNITED AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE 
COMPANY; RANDALL TINDALL, ESQ.; 
and RESNICK & LOUIS, P.C.; and 
DOES I through V, 
 

Third Party  
Defendants. 

 
 
  

Case Number: 07A549111

Electronically Filed
8/21/2019 6:35 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

Electronically Filed
Aug 28 2019 10:12 a.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 79487   Document 2019-35930
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26 

27 

28 

NOTICE OF APPEAL 

Please take notice that intervenor United Automobile Insurance Com-

pany hereby appeals to the Supreme Court of Nevada from: 

1. All judgments and orders in this case; 

2. “Order,” filed on July 26, 2019, notice of entry of which was served 

electronically on July 30, 2019 (Exhibit B); and 

3. All rulings and interlocutory orders made appealable by any of the 

foregoing. 

Dated this 21st day of August, 2019. 

 LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 

 
By:  /s/Abraham G. Smith 

DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376) 
JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492) 
ABRAHAM G. SMITH (SBN 13,250) 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway  
Suite 600 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
(702) 949-8200 
 
MATTHEW J. DOUGLAS (SBN 11,371) 
ATKIN WINNER & SHERROD 
1117 South Rancho Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
(702) 243-7000 
 
 

Attorneys for Intervenor United  
Automobile Insurance Company 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on August 21, 2019, I served the foregoing “Notice of Appeal” 

through the Court’s electronic filing system to the following counsel: 
David A. Stephens 
STEPHENS & BYWATER, P.C. 
3636 North Rancho Drive 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89130 
DStephens@SGBLawFirm.com  
 
E. Breen Arntz 
E. BREEN ARNTZ, ESQ. 
5545 Mountain Vista, Suite E 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89120 
Breen@Breen.com  
 

Thomas F. Christensen 
CHRISTENSEN LAW OFFICES 
1000 S. Valley View Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89107 
CourtNotices@InjuryHelpNow.com  
 

  
  

          /s/Lisa M. Noltie      
                                             An Employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
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ELiZAB A. S-Rown 
CLERK OF UPREME COU 

BY 
DEPUTY CLERK 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

No. 79487 

FILE 
APR 0 8 2021 

UNITED AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE 
COMPANY, 
Appellant, 
vs. 
CHEYENNE NALDER; AND GARY 
LEWIS, 
Res iondents. 

ORDER DISMISSING APPEAL 

This is an appeal from a district court order denying a post-

judgment motion for NRCP 60(b) relief. Eighth Judicial District Court, 

Clark County; Eric Johnson, Judge. 

Appellant United Automobile Insurance Company (UAIC) has 

filed a suggestion of rnootness, recognizing that, in related case Nalder v. 

Eighth Judicial District Court, we directed the district court to vacate its 

order granting UAIC leave to intervene in the underlying case and to strike 

any related subsequent pleadings and orders, including the appealed order. 

136 Nev. 200, 209, 462 P.3d 677, 686 (2020). Respondents Cheyenne Nalder 

and Gary Lewis have filed a response, agreeing that this appeal should be 

dismissed as moot but seeking sanctions against UAIC for filing and 

maintaining a frivolous appeal and for acting in bad faith in pursuing 

litigation and appellate relief in this matter in general. UAIC has filed a 

reply opposing the sanctions request. 

Having reviewed the parties filings, we agree that this appeal 

was rendered moot by our decision in Nalder, 136 Nev. 200, 462 P.3d 677, 

and should be dismissed. See Univ. & Crnty. Coll. Sys. of Nev. v. Nevadans 

SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0) 1947A (431114114 

,7:rzm SF "Mr5-7v;,  
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for Sound Gov't, 120 Nev. 712, 720, 100 P.3d 179, 186 (2004) (recognizing 

that events subsequent to the district court's decision can render an appeal 

moot). Further, it does not appear that this appeal—which has not been 

briefed—was pursued frivolously, and we decline to impose sanctions. 

NRAP 38. Accordingly, we 

ORDER this appeal DISMISSED. 

—941)1416.mam7 J. 
Parraguirre 

Stiglich 

J. 
Silver 

cc: Hon. Eric Johnson, District Judge 
Paul M. Haire, Settlement Judge 
Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP/Las Vegas 
Winner & Sherrod 
Stephens Law Offices 
E. Breen Arntz, Chtd. 
Christensen Law Offices, LLC 
Eighth District Court Clerk 

SUPREME COURT 
OF 

NEVADA 

()) 1947A aialD 2 
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